
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, May 8, 2012                                                                                 City Council Chambers 
7:30 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER  
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes of April 24, 2012 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Contract Amendment for Park Construction Management Services (Thomas) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Appoint Voting Delegate for Puget Sound Regional Council Assembly Meeting (Matheson) 
2. 2012 First Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 
3. Discuss and Consider Direction on Solid Waste Franchise (Akramoff) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed  
   
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum 
of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask 
the operator to dial (253) 638-1110.  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  May 8, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  APRIL 24, 2012 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the April 24, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 59



City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, April 24, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, April 
24, 2012, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Wayne Snoey. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks 
& Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Snoey who was recovering from surgery.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Parks & Recreation Commission Chair Steven Pand accepted a proclamation for Earth 
Day. 

• Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff accepted proclamations for National 
Transportation Week and National Public Works Week. 

• Aquatics Supervisor Ethan Newton accepted a proclamation for National Water Safety 
Month. 

• Covington Water District Commissioner Vern Allemand accepted a proclamation for 
National Drinking Water Week. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 59



Kollin Higgins, not a Covington resident, spoke regarding his concerns with the increased 
crime in the unincorporated residential area south of Covington and asked for council assistance 
in reminding King County councilmembers about the need for police service in this area. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  April 10, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers #27515-27557, in the Amount of $88,680.17, Dated April 2, 2012; Voucher 

#27558-27558, in the Amount of $84,225.59, Dated April 9, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000458231-1000458242  Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $140,346.65, Dated April 13, 2012. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 12-02 AND FIXING A 
NEW PUBLIC HEARING FOR VACATION OF A PORTION 
OF 176TH PLACE SE LOCATED BETWEEN WAX ROAD 
AND SE 270TH STREET. 

 
C-3. Rescind Resolution Setting Hearing Date for 176th Place SE Right-of-Way Vacation and 

Set New Date. 
 

C-4. Authorize Interlocal Agreement with State of Washington for Printing Services. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Vice Chair Fran McGregor-Hollums reported on the March 8 
and April 12 meetings. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Chair Sandy Bisordi reported on the April 12 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the April 
5 meeting.  The April 19 meeting was canceled. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Steven Pand reported on the April 18 meeting. 
 
Budget Priorities Advisory Committee - Liaison Darren Dofelmier reported on the April 4 and 
April 18 meetings. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  

3 of 59



1.  Consider Planning Commission Recommendation on Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Docket. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded that 
the city council set the official 2012 Comprehensive Plan and Development Regulation 
Amendment Docket as recommended by the Planning Commission to include two 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments:  CPA 2012-01 and CPA 2012-02 and one Development 
Regulation Amendment:  DRA 2012-01.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Consultant Contract for Northern Gateway Study. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
authorize the city manager to execute a personal services agreement in the amount of 
$55,335 between the City of Covington and Stalzer and Associates to prepare Phase 1 of the 
Northern Gateway Study and Analysis.   Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to authorize the City Manager to execute agreements between the City of Covington and 
BranBar LLC and the City of Covington and Yarrow Bay Holdings, in substantial form of 
the agreements as presented, combined totaling $55,335 as payment for Phase 1 of the 
Northern Gateway Study and Analysis.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas reported on the recent loss of some grant funding for 
the Covington Community Park project and requested Council’s agreement on the possibility 
that after the bids for the Park Project come in on May 17, that funds previously allocated to the 
Aquatics Center that are no longer needed be transferred to the Park Project. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus that this possibility could be considered 
after the bids are received for the Covington Community Park Project to determine what 
the actual cost will be for construction.  
 
Mayor Harto asked for Council’s opinion of the idea to suggest the Human Services Commission 
consider allocating to Project Uth when it is dispersing any available extra funds during the year 
and encouraging Project Uth to submit an application for funding during the next funding cycle. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to agree with Mayor Harto’s Project Uth 
suggestion. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
George Pearson, 16823 SE 265th Street, Covington, thanked staff for attending the recent 
Timberlane Homeowners Association meeting.  Mr. Pearson also reported on the latest 
information regarding Timberlane which included the Red Cross’ designation of the clubhouse 

4 of 59



as an emergency center and Timberlane’s goal of purchasing a generator and building a kitchen 
in the clubhouse. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential Litigation (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 8:25 p.m. to 8:35 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

5 of 59



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 8, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #27559-27641, in the Amount of $207,532.60, Dated April 16, 
2012; Voucher #27642-27642, in the Amount of $72.78, Dated April 26, 2012; and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1000481558-1000481571 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000481725-
1000481726  Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $145,593.85, Dated 
April 27, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #27559-27641, in the Amount 
of $207,532.60, Dated April 16, 2012; Voucher #27642-27642, in the 
Amount of $72.78, Dated April 26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000481558-1000481571 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000481725-
1000481726  Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$145,593.85, Dated April 27, 2012. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 of 59



7 of 59



8 of 59



9 of 59



10 of 59



11 of 59



12 of 59



13 of 59



14 of 59



15 of 59



16 of 59



17 of 59



18 of 59



19 of 59



20 of 59



21 of 59



22 of 59



23 of 59



  Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 8, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT #3 WITH MACLEOD RECKORD FOR CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES ON THE COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK 
PROJECT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. MacLeod Reckord Amendment #3 - Scope of Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:  
This supplement allows for the consultant, MacLeod Reckord, and their sub consultants to 
provide bidding and construction administration support for the Covington Community Park 
project.  The supplement is in the amount of $49,294 and a detailed breakdown and scope of 
services can be seen in Attachment 1. 
 
The construction management support is necessary in order to administer the project due to the 
limited resources that we have available.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The $49,294 is less than 3% of the total estimated construction of $1.84 million.  This is 
considerably lower than acceptable percentages that are often closer to 10% and can be as much 
as 15% for more complicated projects.  The use of city staff to manage as much of the project as 
possible allows this percentage to be a lower amount being paid to the consultant.   
 
This amount is within the budget projected for these services.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:               Ordinance             Resolution     X     Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Contract Amendment #3 
with MacLeod Reckord for construction management services on the 
Covington Community Park Project. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 
 

24 of 59



CITY OF COVINGTON 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 
Amendment #3 

 
Between the City of Covington and MacLeod Reckord PLLC 

 
 

That portion of Contract No. 921-09 between the City of Covington and MacLeod Reckord 
PLLC is amended as follows: 
 
1. Section 3. Term of Agreement is extended to April 30, 2013; 
2. Section 4. Compensation and Method of Payment, the total contract amount is increased by 

$49,294 to an amount not to exceed $562,515; 
3. Exhibit A, Scope of Work is expanded to include Covington Community Park Phase 1 

Contract Administration Services. 
 
All other provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Dated this 8th day of May, 2012. 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson 
Its: City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
MACLEOD RECKORD 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
Its: ______________________________ 

25 of 59

ATTACHMENT 1



 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known to be the 
_______________________ of _____________________________________that executed the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that 
he/she was authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate 
seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

 
 

26 of 59



 
 

MacLeod Reckord, PLLC 
Landscape Architecture     Planning     Urban Design 
Colman Building 
91 Marion Street 
Seattle, Washington 98104 
P 206-323-7919 
F 206-323-9242 
 

April 9, 2012 

 
Don Vondran, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of Covington 
16720 Se 271st Ste, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
Re: Amendment #3–Covington Community Park Phase 1 Construction Contract Administration 

Services Proposal 

MacLeod Reckord, PLLC is pleased to submit the attached scope of work and proposed fees for 
construction administration services on Covington Community Park Phase 1. We have included 
the services of PACE Engineers, Inc. to provide construction contract administration on SE 
240th Street frontage improvements and the stormwater system; the services of Sparling to 
provide construction contract administration services on the electrical service and system; and 
the services of ESA to assist us with construction contract administration of wetland mitigation 
and creation. Attached are detailed scopes of work and fee proposals for MacLeod Reckord and 
each of the subconsultants.  

MacLeod Reckord proposes to provide services on a time and materials basis not to exceed 
$49,294.00 to be billed and payable monthly in accordance with the base contract. Fees are 
based on a seven month construction schedule with advertisement for bids in April 2012. 
Following is a summary of proposed fees: 

MacLeod Reckord, PLLC $ 31,940 
PACE $ 8,500 
Sparling $ 4,141 
ESA $ 3,135 
10% Subconsultant Administration   $ 1,578 

Total Proposed Fees $ 49,294 

MacLeod Reckord is excited to be reaching another milestone in the project and getting Phase 
1 construction underway. Thank you for your consideration of this proposal. 

Sincerely, 

 
Ed MacLeod 

attach: Scopes and Fees 

 

27 of 59

EXHIBIT A



Page 1 of 2 
 

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 
Scope of Work 

April 2012 
 
 
Task 1.  Limited Construction Administration 
Assist the Owner with the administration of the construction contract as follows: 
 
1.1 Attend pre-construction conference including the review/preparation of conference agenda and meeting 

notes. 
 
1.2 Weekly Construction Meetings (28) 

Attend weekly construction meetings to review project status including RFIs, submittals, change proposals 
and change orders, progress payments, as-builts schedule and three week schedule. Chair an open 
discussion concerning construction issues, prepare a list of action items and meeting notes. 
 

1.3 Weekly Construction Progress Observations (28) 
Provide weekly construction observation walkthrough of the site to observe contractor’s progress and 
workmanship and provide a written report to the Owner. 
 

1.4 Review material samples provided by the contractor and provide a recommendation to the Owner. 
 
1.5 Review product submittals from the contractor and provide a recommendation to the Owner. 
 
1.6 Perform additional site observations at critical times during construction and as requested by the Owner or 

contractor and provide a report to the Owner. (4) 
 
1.7 Review the contractor’s submitted project schedule and provide recommendations to the Owner. 
 
1.8 Review the contractor’s schedule of values and provide recommendations to the Owner. 
 
1.9 Review shop drawings for accuracy and conformance with the contract documents and provide a written 

recommendation to the Owner. 
 
1.10 Review test results for conformance with requirements of permits and contract documents. 
 
1.11 Respond to contractors’ request for additional information (RFIs). 
 
1.12 Witness irrigation pressure tests performed by the contractor in the presence of the landscape architect and 

provide test results to the Owner. 
 
1.13 Witness irrigation coverage tests performed by the contractor in the presence of the landscape architect and 

provide the Owner with a list of changes and adjustments to be performed by the contractor. 
 
1.14 Preliminary Punch List 

Perform a thorough walkthrough of the completed project and provide the Owner with a list of construction 
deficiencies requiring correction by the contractor. 

 
1.15 Final Punch List 

Perform a thorough walkthrough of the completed project to back check the preliminary punch list and 
provide a recommendation to the Owner. 

 
1.16 Administration 
 

28 of 59



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Task 2.  Project Closeout 
 
2.1 Coordinate receipt of required contractor closeout documents including warranties, release of liens, 

Operation & Maintenance Manuals, and Record Drawings. 
 
2.2 “As-Built” Drawings 
 Convert contractor provided redline markups of changes during construction to AutoCAD electronic files 

and submit to Owner. 
 
2.3 Administration 
 
 

End of Scope of Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

29 of 59



MacLeod Reckord, PLLC FEE DERIVATION
Landscape Architects Project: Covington Park CA Services

Date:April 9, 2012

HOURS RATE/FEE
TASK PRINC PM LA DRAFT PRINC PM LA DRAFT TOTAL

$150 $127 $100 $85

TASK 1. LIMITED CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
1.1  Pre-Construction Conference 4     600      -          -          -          
1.2  Weekly Construction Meetings and Minutes (26) 78   -          9,906   -          -          
1.3  Weekly Construction Progress Observations
       and Reports (26) 52   -          6,604   -          -          
1.4  Review Material Samples 8     -          1,016   -          -          
1.5  Review Product Submittals 12   -          1,524   -          -          
1.6  Requested Site Observations and Reports (4) 12   -          1,524   -          -          
1.7  Review Contractor Schedule 4     -          508      -          -          
1.8  Review Schedule of Values 4     -          508      -          -          
1.9  Review Shop Drawings 6     -          762      -          -          
1.10 Review Test Results 4     -          508      -          -          
1.11 Respond to RFIs 1     8     4     150      1,016   400      -          
1.12 Irrigation Pressure Tests (2) 8     -          -          800      -          
1.13 Irrigation Coverage Test (1) 4     -          -          400      -          
1.14 Preliminary Punch List 6     -          762      -          -          
1.15 Final Punch List 4     4     600      508      -          -          
1.16 Administration 4     600      -          -          -          

28,696    
TASK 2. PROJECT CLOSEOUT

2.1  Coordinate Contractor Closeout Documents:
Warranties 2     -          254      -          -          
Release of Liens 2     -          254      -          -          
O&M Manuals 4     -          508      -          -          
Record Drawings (Redline Mark-ups) 2     -          254      -          -          

2.2  Convert Mark-Ups to Electronic Files 1     2     4     12   150      254      400      1,020   
2.3 Administration 1     150      -          -          -          

3,244      

TOTAL: 31,940$   

SUBTOTAL

Page 1 of 130 of 59



 

 

Engineers  |  Planners  |  Surveyors 

 An Engineering Services Company 

 

 

PACE Engineers, Inc. 

Kirkland Office 

11255 Kirkland Way  |  Suite 300  |  Kirkland, WA  98033 

P  425.827.2014   |  f  425.827.5043 

paceengrs.com 

 
 
 
 
February 16, 2012 

 
 

Mr. Ed MacLeod 
MacLeod Reckord Landscape Architects 
91 Marion Street 
Seattle, WA  98104 
 
Subject: Covington Park – Phase I 
  Proposal for Construction Administration Services 
 
Dear Mr. MacLeod: 
 
PACE Engineers, Inc. would like to thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for 
providing Construction Administration Services for the subject project.  As we understand it the 
overall scope of work is to provide civil engineering support during bidding, award, construction 
and closeout of the project for completion of Phase I of Covington Park in the City of Covington. 
 
Listed below is our proposed scope of services, assumptions and estimated budget for the 
proposed work.  If anything in this proposal is not as you anticipated, please let us know so we 
can adjust it as required.  The tasks and scope of work as we envision them are as follows: 
 
Scope of Work for Construction Administration Services 
 

1. Provide support during bidding and award.  This may entail addressing questions 
before bid, completion of addenda and/or contractor reference checks. 

2. Attend construction meetings for coordination as required.  This may include pre-
construction meetings with jurisdictions prior to construction and site meetings to 
review and report on progress during construction. 

3. Provide review and response to material submittals to check for conformance to 
project specifications. 

4. Provide review and response to Requests For Information (RFI’s) from the 
contractor during construction. 

5. Provide review and response to Change Order Requests from the contractor for 
changed conditions or work scope. 

6. Provide review and response to contractor Pay Requests in reference to work 
accomplished during construction. 

7. Provide review of contractor red-line mark-ups to support final as-built drawings for 
permanent records. 

8. We are available to provide any other construction support activities as necessary 
to successfully complete the project, CESCL duties such as turbidity and pH 
monitoring and reporting, construction inspection, surveyed as-built verification, 
final as-built drawings, etc.  Note that this scope of work item is not part of the 
estimated budget below and we would propose providing an estimated budget for 

31 of 59



  Engineers  |  Planners  |  Surveyors 
 

Mr. Ed MacLeod 
MacLeod Reckord Landscape Architects 
February 16, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 
these services as requested. 

 
Fee Estimate 
 
Due to potential unforeseen conditions and contractor variability this task is presented as an 
estimated budget.  Work efforts will be performed and billed on a time and materials basis at 
the attached rate schedule.  Additional efforts beyond the budgeted amount will not be 
performed without prior authorization. 

                         
ESTIMATED BUDGET       $8,500.00 

 
This budget has been based on 2012 billing rates.  If the project extends beyond December 
2012 PACE anticipates rates will be billed at current rates at the time of service. 
 
In summary, we have developed a scope of work and estimated budget based on our present 
knowledge of the project.  We have tried to cover all aspects of the project; however, if you feel 
that additional areas of work require our attention, if you have any questions or if you desire 
additional information please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
We are pleased to have this opportunity to submit a proposal to accomplish the civil engineering 
related Construction Administration tasks for the subject project and look forward to working 
with you on another successful project.  If you concur with this proposal, and the attached 
Terms and Conditions, please have the appropriately authorized person sign below and forward 
one copy back to our office. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
PACE Engineers, Inc. 
 
Philip D. Cheesman, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
Attachments: 2012 Rate Schedule, Terms and Conditions 
 
 
I agree to the above described construction administration services proposal. 
 
 
              
Name/Signature    Title     Date 
 

32 of 59



 

 

 
 
February 22, 2012 
 
Ed Macleod 
MacLeod Reckord 
91 Marion Street 
Seattle, WA 98104 
 
Subject: Covington Community Park 

Construction Administration ~ Additional Service Request 
 
ASR#1 
 
Mr. MacLeod: 
 
We are requesting authorization for Additional Services as listed below for the 
Covington Community Park project.  These services modify our Covington 
Community Park Phase 2 Agreement dated March 5, 2009 for the above Project.  
Additional Services include: 
 
Scope of Additional Services: 

1. (3) Site Visits/Review Meeting (at 4 hours each including travel time) 
2. Submittal Review (4 hours) 
3. RFI review and response (8 hours) 
4. Punch list and light readings (6 hours including travel time) 

 
Compensation: 
Compensation for the services defined above shall be a fixed fee amount of $4,141. 
 
Entire Agreement: 
All provisions of the original Agreement referenced above and any subsequent 
modifications to date shall remain in effect for these Additional Services.  
 
We are pleased to provide the above Additional Services, and await your signature 
of this Agreement before proceeding.  Please call with any questions you may have. 
 
 
Sparling Inc., by 
 
Wesley Ward, Project Manager 

 MacLeod Reckord, by 
 
Ed Macleod, Principal 

   

 

Signature  

  
Signature 
 

Date     02/22/2012  Date 

 

720 Olive Way
Suite 1400

Seattle, Washington
98101-1853

206-667-0555
800-667-0610

Fax: 206-667-0554

www.sparling.com

33 of 59

www.sparling.com


Exhibit B 

Amendment to SCOPE OF WORK 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

ESA (Formerly ESA Adolfson) 

 

Covington 180
th

/240
th

 Park 

February 27, 2012 

 
The following subtask amends the Scope of Work dated April 10, 2009. The City of Covington is making 

arraignments to implement the construction of Phase 1 of the park development, which includes impacts 

to wetlands and the wetland creation, wetland enhancement, and buffer enhancement plan developed by 

ESA and MacLeod Reckord. Tasks 1 through 3 of the original contract were related to wetland 

delineation, mitigation design, and permitting. This additional task is related to assistance during 

construction, which is expected to be conducted in 2012.   

 

 

Task 4 – Wetland Creation Area Construction Monitoring 

An ESA staff member will conduct up to three 6-hour site visits to coordinate with Macleod Reckord staff 

and the construction contractor to answer questions concerning grading of the wetland creation area. ESA 

staff will review the work for consistency with the mitigation plan and provide verbal comments 

regarding initial grading, replacing stockpiled subsoils and topsoils, placement of log/berm structures, and 

final grading of the wetland area.   

 

Assumptions: Macleod Reckord will coordinate with construction contractors and inform ESA of the 

dates and times for on-site meetings at least 10 days in advance. Site visits will be limited to 6 hours 

including drive time. 

 
Deliverables: No deliverables are associated with this task. 

 
Task 4        $  3,135 

 

34 of 59



Agenda Item 1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: May 8, 2012 
 

 
SUBJECT:   APPOINT VOTING DELEGATE FOR THE 2012 PUGET SOUND REGIONAL 

COUNCIL GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETING. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) will hold its annual General Assembly meeting on 
June 7, 2012 from 3:30 to 8:30 pm.  Each city has a weighted vote on matters before the General 
Assembly.  At the time of this writing there was no councilmember registered to attend this 
meeting.  Council may wish to appoint a voting delegate.  Following is the draft agenda for the 
evening’s meeting. 
 
Agenda 
3:30 PM — Registration 
4 — 5:30 PM — Business Meeting 
5:30 — 6:30 PM — No-Host Reception 
6:30 — 8:30 PM — Dinner 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, and Councilmember ___________ 
seconds to appoint Councilmember __________ as the City of Covington’s 
voting delegate at the 2012 Puget Sound Regional Council General Assembly 
meeting. 

 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager 

 

35 of 59



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 8, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  2012 FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2012 First Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Comparison   

 
PREPARED BY:   
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion   _____Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY AT THIS MEETING  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

36 of 59



 

 

March employment grew by only 120,000 jobs, well below most 
economists’ expectations and much slower than the 200,000 plus 
gains seen in the previous three months. 

The U.S. unemployment rate dropped 0.1% to 8.2% as discouraged 
job seekers left the labor force. 

As in the national economy, recent employment growth suggests a 
possible slowdown in the Washington labor market recovery. 

Major General Fund-State revenue collections for the March 11 – 
April 10, 2012 collection period were $24.9 million (2.7%) higher than 
the February forecast. 

Cumulatively, collections since the February forecast are $17.2 mil-
lion (1.0%) higher than forecasted. 

The construction sector has stopped declining but is not adding to 
growth.  

Single family housing continues to struggle but multi-family con-
struction is improving—potentially due to rising rents and declin-
ing apartment vacancies.  

Economic & Revenue Summary 
~WA State Economic & Revenue Forecast Council  

2012 First Quarter 

While the first quarter does not reflect trends for the remainder of the 
year it is important to get a solid footing established early on. If there is 
weakness early in the year it is harder to make up dollars later. Strength 
in the first quarter allows for softness later in the year without having to 
scramble to make cuts or look for new revenue sources to shore up a 
struggling budget. This quarter is looking strong. It is staff’s hope that 
this trend reflects gaining strength in the economy and will continue.  

Property Tax 2 

Real Estate Excise Tax 2 

Retail Sales and Use Tax  3 

Utility Tax 3 

General Fund 4 

Public Works 5 

Development Services 5 

Parks and Recreation 5 

Inside this issue: 

20
12

 F
ir

st
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

 
 

C
I

T
Y

 
O

F
 

C
O

V
I

N
G

T
O

N
 

March 31, 2012 

 

Cash and Investments 6 

Capital Investment Program 7 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

- Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

37 of 59

ATTACHMENT 1



 

 

Page 2 20 1 2 FIRS T QUAR T ER  

Property tax is col-
lected by King County 
and distributed on a 
daily basis to all taxing 
agencies within the 
county. Since taxes are 
due on April 30 and Oc-
tober 30 each year, the major distri-
butions are realized in early May 
and November.  

Through 1st quarter the City re-
ceived $85,776 or 3.6% of budget. 
This is just a fraction of the as-
sessed levy for the year and is 
$27,427 above 2011 first quarter col-
lections.   

Property tax is the most stable 
source of revenue the City has. It is 

one leg of the “three legged” stool 
which the General Fund relies on for 
revenue. The other two legs are 
sales tax and utility tax.  

Property taxes are unrestricted. 
This means there are no restrictions 
on what the revenue can be used to 
pay for within the City. Currently 
property taxes are allocated 100% to 
the General Fund.  

This 2011 levy for 2012 collection is  

$2,340,000 and the levy 
rate is $1.48/$1,000 as-
sessed value.   

The City’s assessed valua-
tion is $1.579 billion—a 
decrease of $142 million 

or 8.3% over the previous year.  

The cap for property tax collections 
is $1.60/$1,000 assessed value.  If 
property valuations decline another 
5% (or $77.4 million) then the levy 
would be bumping the rate cap.  

A report in March stated that home 
prices are at their lowest since No-
vember 2002.  The Seattle market 
was included as making “new 
lows”.  (CNN Money—March 27, 
2012)  

on all sales of real estate at the rate 
of one-half percent (two quarter 
percents).  

Through the first quarter, collec-
tions are at $207,527 or 63.8% of 

REET is a restricted revenue dedi-
cated to paying debt service on the 
2007 transportation bonds and 
loans from the Public Works Trust 
Fund. This tax is levied by the City 

budget. The Home Depot Shopping 
Center Complex sale contributed to 
the large amount. The budget for 
2012 is $325,000.  

Through March there were eight 
new home sales, 35 ex-
isting home sales, 11 
land only sales,  two 
building sales, and 
seven commercial sales.   

Generally, existing 
home sales drive REET, 
but commercial sales 
add revenue rapidly and 
in large chunks.  

Property Tax 

2010 2011 2012 

 $   73,491  $   58,349  $   84,776 

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) 

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2008 113 128 156 189 238 272 306 351 395 444 486 515 

2009 22 36 65 90 111 136 170 195 221 251 284 306 

2010 20 32 58 91 116 174 202 228 243 250 272 322 

2011 140 154 171 192 222 260 288 308 334 346 366 390 

2012 25 198 208 233 

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$
 in

 t
h
o

u
s
a
n
d

s
 (
0
0
0
).

  
  

2012 

38 of 59



 

 

M AR CH 31,  201 2  

Sales and Use Tax is the largest 
revenue source available to the 
City. It currently supports the Gen-
eral Fund at 84% and the Parks and 
Recreation Fund at 16%.  The first 
quarter (on a cash basis) is above 
2011 levels by $72,047 or 2.8%.  Total 
collections are at  $814,099 or 
28.6%. 

In year over year compari-
sons, retail sales increased by 
4.9%, construction increased 
107.5%, food services was up 
3.4%, and all other categories 
increased 5.2%.  

Retail sales benefited as sev-
eral new retailers entered the 
marketplace such as Air-
stream Trailer Sales, and Big 
Lots.  

The last five months ( Oct – 
Feb sales) have had the high-
est collection amounts in 

Covington’s history. And nine of the 
last 12 months have been the high-
est collections ever for their respec-
tive months. Since Jan 2011, con-
struction has seen positive in-
creases on a year over year ba-
sis.  Retail has been positive since 
June 2011 and all categories have 

been positive since August 2011. 
Some of the increase can be attrib-
uted to new retail business. How-
ever, there appears to be overall 
strengthening in the market includ-
ing food services. There are still 
road bumps ahead but this appears 
to be the trend for now.   

The City imposes a utility tax on electrical energy, 
natural gas, brokered natural gas, solid waste, cable 
television, and telephone at the rate of 6.0%. 

The utility tax supports the general fund including 
debt service, streets, parks and parks CIP. 

The first quarter is starting higher than 2011 by  
$49,778. Cable is the only category that is lower than 
last year.  

MuniServices is in process of conducting an audit of 
solid waste, cable and tele-
phone service that should pro-
vide some answers to the 
swings in revenue. 

The accompanying chart reflects 
the changes in revenue for the 
first quarter of 2011 and 2012. 

Page 3 

Retail Sales & Use Tax 

          Utility Tax 

Utility 2011 2012 

 Electricity $179,147 $188,608 

 Natural Gas 125,566 136,877 

 Solid Waste 28,616 34,643 

 Cable 60,990 58,977 

 Telephone 119,950 144,942 

Total $514,269 $564,047 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2010 219 544 740 950 1,171 1,391 1,617 1,851 2,125 2,347 2,575 2,795

2011 232 546 742 941 1,185 1,414 1,652 1,899 2,196 2,444 2,698 2,948

2012 247 586 814 

3 yr average 233 559 765 981 1,171 1,398 1,627 1,866 2,145 2,377 2,614 2,844

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000
$ 

in
 t

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
(0

0
0

).
   

 

CUMULATIVE

39 of 59



 

 

transfers out through March are 
$1,056,300. This is a decrease in 
spending of 2.4% or $25,300 over 
the same period last year.    

Overall, 11.9% of the budget has 
been spent. Note in the chart be-
low that most departments are 
well below the 25% mark, but the 
City Council and Central Services 
are at 31% and 36% respectively. 
These departments paid some 
large one-time charges in January, 
thus skewing the reporting for the 

Revenues for the first quarter are 
20.7% of budget or $1.7 million. 
This is ahead of 2011 levels by 
about $140,000. Sales tax, on a 
cash basis, is 9.7% or $72,049 
higher (this is due to a change in % 
allocation) than 2011 first quarter 
while utility tax is 9.7% or $49,778 
above 2011 collections (due in part 
to rate change). Property taxes 
are higher than 2011. The first half 
of property taxes are due April 30.   

Total expenditures including 

year.  

Police Services is abnormally low 
and will be billed in May after the 
first distribution of property tax 
revenue.  Expenditures would still 
be under the 25% mark if the po-
lice billing were added.  

 Beginning fund balance is 
$3,004,967—an increase of 
$653,377. This is a result of under 
spending and increased revenues 
during 2011.  

Page 4 20 1 2 FIRS T QUAR T ER  

GENERAL FUND  

GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENT BUDGET UPDATE 

          

Department YTD - 2011 % of Budget YTD - 2012 % of Budget 

 City Council 52,385 36.8% 44,167 11.1% 

 Municipal Court 66,204 13.2% 64,109 9.7% 

 City Manager 182,869 20.8% 192,973 20.4% 

 Finance 122,947 24.3% 127,200 24.2% 

 Legal 11,271 13.1% 10,158 12.7% 

 Personnel 70,775 21.7% 82,660 24.8% 

 Central Services 313,085 33.6% 324,456 35.6% 

 Law Enforcement 2,886 0.1% 1,221 0.0% 

 Community Development 143,090 32.8% 81,118 20.8% 

 Operating Transfers Out 116,122 10.0% 128,028 8.4% 

TOTAL $   1,081,634 13.6% $   1,056,269 11.9% 

40 of 59



 

 

M AR CH 31,  201 2  Page 5 

Public Works consists of Street 
Operations and Surface Water 
Management (SWM).  

Street Operations is funded by 
franchise fees received from Com-
cast and a motor vehicle fuel ex-
cise tax—gas tax.  

Franchise fees are right on target 
at 25.1% or $49,884. Total operat-
ing revenues are $134,940 and 
transfers in are $68,927. At 
$203,866, this puts total revenues 
right at 25% for the first quarter.  

The gas tax is running slightly un-
der budget. This could be due to 
the economy or inaccurate fore-

casting. The forecast is generated 
through Municipal Research Ser-
vices Corporation (MRSC). The 
amount received was about 22.5% 
($83,661) of budget. This is lower 
than 2011 by about $5,000.   

Total expenditures are under 
budget for the first quarter. Total 
expenditures are at 20.2% or 
$183,063. This will adjust upward 
as maintenance and construction 
season begin in the second quar-
ter.   

SWM is primarily funded through 
drainage fees that are collected 
by King County. The City has col-

lected just a fraction of the budg-
eted amount—$69,900 or 4.1%.  
Total revenues are at 4.4% or 
$80,645.  

Operating expenditures are at 
19.4% or $234,848. With transfers 
out and debt service costs total 
uses are $333,570 or 19.1%.  

Fund balances for Street Opera-
tions declined by $229,607 while in 
creasing in SWM by $373,151. 

The reduction in Street Opera-
tions was due to the repayment of 
REET money which was used to 
strengthen cash flow in prior 
years.  

pared to six in 2011. New commer-
cial is at two compared to one in 
2011.  

Operational expenditures came in 
at 22.9% or $167,481. Including in-
terfund services of $37,634 raises 
the percentage to 23.3%.  

 Beginning fund balance is 

While revenue in the first quarter 
is about on target it is almost 
$98,000 ahead of 2011 for the 
same time period. Through the 
end of March, $368,806 or 26.8% 
has been received. Permit reve-
nues are driving this increase.  

The number of permits for single 
family residences are at 24 com-

$1,562,733—an increase of 
$761,459. Higher than forecast 
revenues contributed to this in-
crease.   

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

Parks is divided into four divisions: 
aquatics, maintenance, recrea-
tion, and parks administration. 
Revenues are derived from a por-
tion of sales tax (16%), aquatics 
revenue, and some miscellaneous 
revenues such as rentals and in-
terest earnings.  

Revenue came in slightly ahead  of 
forecast at 25.9% or $313,255—led 

in part by sales tax. Aquatics reve-
nue is 22.4% or $111,793—$8,124 
above 2011.  

Attendance is slightly ahead of 
2011 at 18,664. Considering that 
January was almost 900 less than 
2011 this is quite encouraging.  

Overall operating expenditures 
for the four divisions are 21.7% or 
about $238,378. Overall uses are 

$268,854 or 21.6%. Revenues are 
exceeding expenditures by  
$44,401.   

The beginning fund balance is 
$232,391 which is a decrease of 
$957.   

 

PARKS and RECREATION 

41 of 59



 

 

Page 6 20 1 2 FIRS T QUAR T ER  

Total cash and investments total  
$11,160,805. This exceeds March 
2011 by $3.45 million. The largest 
gainer is CIP followed by Develop-
ment Services and the General 
Fund.   

The Local Government Invest-
ment Pool (LGIP) is currently earn-
ing 0.17%. The City has $7,583,843 
invested with the LGIP. The LGIP 
invests in short term securities. It 
is comparable to an SEC regulated 
Rule 2a-7 money market fund and 
offers 100% liquidity to its partici-
pants.  

Investments outside the LGIP to-
tal $2,498,789.65 (market value).  
That is split between US Govern-
ment Agencies  at $2,002,122 and 
M un ic i p a l  S ec ur i t ie s  at 
$496,667.65.  

The  weighted yield of the portfo-
lio with the state pool is 0.45% and 
without the pool is 1.45%. Average 
days to maturity with the pool is 
230 days or 0.63 years and with-
out the pool is 823 days or 2.25 
years.  

Cash on hand is kept at US Bank  
and various petty cash funds 

throughout the City.  

The chart below reflects the 
amount of cash and investments 
allocated to each fund within the 
City compared to 2011. This is rec-
onciled and updated on a monthly 
basis.  

Cash & Investments 

TOTAL GENERAL LEDGER ACCOUNTS  

 
as of 03/31/11 as of 03/31/12 ∆ 

GENERAL FUND  $2,131,989.42   $2,868,630.47   $  736,641.05  

STREET FUND    293,648.80     266,724.15       (26,924.65)  

CONTINGENCY FUND 419,317.31 419,618.43       301.12 

CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND   1,412,250.64    1,434,187.25      21,936.61  

REET 1ST 1/4% FUND    202,914.62  103,763.47     (99,151.15) 

REET 2ND 1/4% FUND     202,914.62      103,763.47       (99,151.15)  

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND    771,822.20  1,734,660.18    962,837.98 

PARKS FUND    172,700.11     190,690.23  17,990.12 

LID 99-01 GUARANTY FUND     52,156.93      52,258.32         101.39  

LID 99.01 FUND      17,786.04       145.83       (17,640.21)  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM   434,170.43    2,093,514.86   1,659,344.43 

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT   1,099,199.50  1,416,842.83     317,643.33 

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE    139,471.31     142,548.30       3,076.99 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT    358,171.83     333,456.87       (24,714.96)  

        

TOTAL ALL FUNDS  $7,708,513.76   $11,160,804.66   $3,452,290.90 

42 of 59



 

 

M AR CH 31,  201 2  Page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A very insignificant amount has 
been spent through the first quar-
ter—about $10,000 out of a $3.27 
million budget.  

The table below outlines the indi-
vidual projects.  

No revenues were received during 
this period. However, there are 
monies in liability accounts to off-
set these expenditures.    

Capital Investment Program 

Project # Project Description Revenues  Expenditures 

1010 Covington Community Park $0 $2,710 

1039 SR 516 Safety Widening $0 $7,244 

16720 SE 271st St 

Suite 100 

Covington, WA 98042 

C I T Y  O F  C O V I N G T O N  
F I N A N C E  D E P A R T M E N T  

Phone: 253-638-1110 

Fax: 253-638-1122 

 
Rob Hendrickson - Finance Director 

Casey Parker - Accountant 
Lindsay Hagen - Finance Specialist 

Staci Cles - Accounting Clerk 

43 of 59



ATTACHMENT 2

44 of 59



45 of 59



46 of 59



47 of 59



48 of 59



49 of 59



ATTACHMENT 3

50 of 59



 Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 8, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS AND CONSIDER DIRECTION ON SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Emails from Republic and Waste Management regarding study session questions 
 
PREPARED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On Tuesday, February 14, the City Council held a study session focused on the history and 
current conditions of the solid waste franchise within the City of Covington.  The objectives for 
the study session were to provide information on the current franchise, summarize possible 
options available for future franchise agreements, hear comments from the current and potential 
service providers, answer questions pertaining to solid waste, and determine the next steps.  At 
the study session the Council requested further information regarding continuity of service 
should labor issues arise and the reasoning behind the length of the franchise terms.  Republic 
and Waste Management submitted responses to these questions and are attached as Attachment 1 
hereto.  It was also determined that once the research was completed the issue would be brought 
back to the City Council for further discussion of the possible options for a new franchise 
agreement.   
 
A.  Current Conditions 
At incorporation, Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC) set the service 
area and rates for solid waste services within the city and issued an operational certificate (“G 
Certificate”) to the hauler who had been performing solid waste services within the city limits 
prior to incorporation--Republic Services (Allied Waste).  Pursuant to state regulations, the city 
passed an ordinance in November 2003 granting a franchise to Republic from January 2004 to 
December 2010.  The city had the option to indefinitely extend the franchise with Republic after 
December 2010 and has continued under that same franchise agreement to date.  
 
The city is now reviewing its current franchise agreement with Republic and considering options 
for entering into a new franchise agreement due to changes in customer needs, technology 
changes and improvements, and changes to state and federal regulations.  Some of these changed 
conditions and issues to consider for a new franchise agreement include: 

• Service rates 
• Tracking of all services within the city 
• Lack of sufficient services, especially in commercial recycling 
• Decreasing garbage flow  
• Homeowner Association service support 
• Mandatory garbage and recycling 
• Reduction in carbon emissions 
• Alternative fuel use 

51 of 59



• NPDES spill tracking 
• Reduction of litter on city streets 
• City Code updates 

 
B.  Options for Moving Forward 
Because the original term of the current franchise agreement with Republic has passed, the city is 
free to explore options for entering into a new franchise agreement with Republic or with another 
service provider.  Specifically, the current options before the city are: 
 
Option #1 – Status Quo 
Continue operating under current franchise agreement with Republic—no change in current 
franchise conditions or services. 
 
Option #2 – Full RFP/RFQ Process  
Hire a consultant and provide a fully competitive and open RFP process and negotiate a new 
solid waste franchise with the selected service provider.   
 
Option #3 – Negotiate with Current Service Provider 
Hire a consultant and enter into immediate negotiations with Republic, the current franchise 
holder, to update the services and conditions of the franchise to meet the changing needs of the 
city.   
 
C.  Recommendation 
Staff is recommending Option # 3.  In staff’s review of all issues, services, and concerns, we feel 
Option #3 will provide the best and most timely positive impact on solid waste services to the 
community at this time.  Republic has been a solid and responsive partner with the city to ensure 
that our solid waste needs are met.  Direct negotiations with Republic will incur fewer up-front 
and out-of-pocket costs and provide an efficient process for the city to enter into a new franchise 
agreement that meets the needs and concerns as outlined above.  Additionally, city staff has the 
benefit of reviewing several recent solid waste RFP/RFQ processes conducted in other 
jurisdictions to help inform their negotiations with Republic.  Finally, if Republic and the city 
fail to reach an agreement on new franchise terms, the other two options remain.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Option#1 – No direct cost and no reduction of operational cost. 
Option #2 – Approximately $17,000- $20,000 for consultant and City Attorney services. 
Option #3 – Approximately $6,000 – $11,000 for consultant support and City Attorney services.  
 
NOTE:  Consultant costs have been negotiated as reimbursements to cities within King County 
as part of a final franchise agreement.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution        X     Motion             Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to proceed with Option #___. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

52 of 59



53 of 59



54 of 59



55 of 59



56 of 59



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: May 8, 2012  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

May 22, 2012 – City Council Special & Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57 of 59



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, May 22, 2012                                                                               City Council Chambers 
6:15 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Arts Commission applicants beginning at 6:15 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

• Annual Update from King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be notified in advance and background information 
shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the right to deny any request, based on time 
constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a future study session as time allows for up 
to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 8, 2012 Joint Study Session with the Covington Chamber of Commerce 

Board of Directors and the Covington Economic Development Council and May 8, 2012 
Special Meeting (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appoint Voting Delegate(s) to Association of Washington Cities Annual Meeting 

(Council) 
C-4. Covington Community Sports Agreement for Use of Kent School District Facilities 

(Patterson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  May 10 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  May 10 Meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  May 3 and May 17 Meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  May 16 Meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  April 26 Meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison Darren Dofelmier: May 2 & 16 Meetings. 

 
 

Draft 
as of 05/02/12 

 

58 of 59

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Public Testimony, Discussion, and Possible Action Amending Ordinance for Noise and 

Construction Hours of Operation (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Appointments to Arts Commission (Council) 
3. Consider Code Changes for Wireless Communications Facilities (Hart) 
4. Consider Amendments to 2012 Fee Resolution (Lyons) 
5. Ordinance Establishing Six Percent Utility Tax on Surface Water Management Fund 

(Hendrickson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  
 
 

59 of 59


	05-08-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, May 8, 2012                                                                                 City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 05-08-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 04.24.2012 Reg CC
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 05-08-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 05-08-12 MacLeod Reckord Amendment #3 CM Services
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 05-08-12 MacLeod Reckord Contract Amendment 3
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	MACLEOD RECKORD
	By: ______________________________
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012.

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Exhibit A Covington Amend 3 2012-04-09 scope and fees
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 05-08-12 PSRC Voting Delegate
	Agenda Item 1
	Agenda

	Item 2 Blue Sheet 5_8_12 First Qtr Report
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 First Qtr Report
	Item 3 Attachments 2 & 3
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 05-08-12 Solid Waste Franchise Discussion_SBS Edit_CLEAN
	Item 3 Attachment 1 05-08-12 Solid Waste Franchise Attachment 1
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	05-22-12 Special for Interviews and Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, May 22, 2012                                                                               City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION




